FFGC History: OUR SECOND DECADE: 1935-1944

Presidents during this decade: Mrs. (Eluva P.) M. M. Parrish (1935-1937) of Gainesville
Mrs. Porter (Olive P.) Baldwin (1937-1939) of West Palm Beach
Mrs. Harry M. (Lona) Griffin (1939-1941) of Daytona Beach
Mrs. W.H. (Blanche C.) Covington (1941-1945: War-time extended 

term) of Tallahassee, "Defend Home and Country--Its 


Beauty, Morale and Bounty"

First ‘Short Course for Garden Clubs’ held at University of Florida, June 1936

Honorary memberships conferred on Dr. H. Harold Hume, 1937, Dr. David Fairchild and 

Dr. Horace McFarland, 1938

Lending Library established, 1939

First Book of Information published, 1942


Blanche Covington Nature Study Course established, June 1944

Conventions:



*1935 in Palm Beach (March 20-12)



*1936 in St. Augustine (March 25-26)



*1937 in Pensacola (March 31- 1 April)



*1938 in Jacksonville (March 24-25)



*1939 in Miami (March 30-31)



*1940 in Daytona Beach (11-12 April)



*1941 in Sarasota (April 2-3)



*1942 in Hollywood/ Ft Lauderdale (April 29-30)



*1943 was cancelled due to WWII and gas rationing



*1944 in Tampa (May 10-11)

Club Affiliations with the Federation: 

1936-Tarpon Springs, Panama City, Perry (Daisy)

1937- Stuart, Wauchula, Clewiston, Ft Pierce/Capron Trail, Live Oak, Wildwood

1938-Ft Myers/Periwinkle, Jasper, Winter Haven/Gardenia, Fernandina/Founders, Lake Park, Canal Point and Pahokee Community

1939-Interlachen/Rainbow, Neptune Beach, Arcadia, Leesburg, Apopka, Palm Beach, Key West

1940-Delray Beach, Chiefland/Suwannee River, Highland Park 

1941- Palatka, Crescent City, Ft Lauderdale/Poinciana

1942- Lake Helen, Chattahooche, Green Fingers

1943-Clermont/Minneola, Homestead/South Dade

The 1935 convention was held in Palm Beach where Mrs. M. M. Parrish of Gainesville was elected as Federations’ sixth president. Mrs. Parrish appointed the first Bird Chairman to the Board and the first Short Course of garden subjects was held at the University of Florida in June, 1936, following the 11th annual convention in St. Augustine. At the 1937 convention in Pensacola an Honorary Membership in the Florida Federation of Garden Clubs was conferred on Dr. H. Harold Hume, who had given so generously of his time and talents to the organization. Dr. Hume presented to Mrs. Parrish the idea of establishing a “fellowship fund” whereby a worthy student could further his studies in Florida plant life. Realizing the merit of such a worthwhile project which could be handed down to posterity, the President worked tirelessly toward this goal and it was largely through her efforts a later administration brought to fruition the H. Harold Hume Fellowship in Horticulture.

Also, through the efforts of Mrs. Parrish, appointed earlier by the Governor to a special committee for the purpose of studying conservation laws in Florida, two bills presented to the Legislature were enacted into laws. They were requiring courses of instruction covering conservation of natural resources in the state’s high schools and colleges, and an act establishing a School of Forestry at the University of Florida.

Mrs. Porter Baldwin of West Palm Beach was installed at the Pensacola convention as President of the Federation for the 1937-1939 administration. She was very earnest in her work and remarkable strides in several phases of garden club activities were made under her leadership. Special emphasis was placed on garden tours, garden centers and junior garden clubs. 

At the 1938 convention in Jacksonville, Honorary membership in the Federation was bestowed upon Dr. David Fairchild and Dr. Horace McFarland in appreciation for their contributions to the development of plant life in Florida.

Mead Botanical Garden in Winter Park, gradually developed on 55 acres of swamp lands, was established as a tribute to Dr. Theodore L. Mead who spent 40 years in the development of amaryllis and orchids.

During Mrs. Baldwin’s tenure, the Federation endorsed the movement to provide a State Park on the banks of the Suwannee River and to erect a monument in memory of Stephen Foster, beloved American song writer. Also, in mid-winter 1939 a Fairchild Tropical Garden horticultural exhibit financed by the Federation won a medal at the New York World’s Fair.

Mrs. Harry M. Griffin of Daytona Beach, with her lovable husky voice and her delightful spontaneous spirit of good humor, was installed as President at the 1939 convention in Miami for a two-year administration replete with accomplishments. She was able to consummate as a permanent federation activity the H. Harold Hume Fellowship Fund. Joseph M. Crevasse of Tampa was chosen by the College of Agriculture at University of Florida as the first recipient of the Hume Fellowship in Horticulture. He contributed much over the years in return to the Federation by sharing his knowledge as an instructor in Flower Show Schools and in other ways.

The first Florida State Flower Show, sponsored by Mead Botanical Garden, was held in Orlando May 3-5, 1940. It was endorsed by the Federation and opened by the President, Mrs. Griffin. Unceasing efforts of Federation leaders over several years led to enactment by the Florida Legislature in 1941 the bill regulating outdoor advertising.

Mrs. Griffin was instrumental in establishing the Lending Library at the University of Florida, which made many books available for use by garden clubs. Also, during her tenure, it was made possible for the Horticulture newsletter from the university to be sent to each individual member of the Federation. However, later, due to economic conditions, they were sent only to presidents of clubs. Finally, they were discontinued.

The city of Miami made a few lots in Simpson Pak available to Miami Garden Clubs so their dream of owning a garden center was realized. On January 12, 1941, the Charles Torrey Simpson Memorial Building was dedicated as a tribute to the great horticulturist who had shared his knowledge and expertise with the clubs. 

Mrs. W. H. Covington of Tallahassee followed Mrs. Griffin as Federation President for the 1941-1943 administration, being installed at the 1941 convention in Sarasota after having worked closely with her as roadside development chairman since the 1940 convention in Daytona Beach. Being conversant with the fact climatic conditions in Florida did not permit any set rule for tree distribution, she asked each club to study trees and shrubs of its locality and send in a censored list to be compiled. The compilation was completed by the University of Florida and is available for use by interested persons and for reference in future roadside plantings.

Suddenly, without warning, the dark clouds of war descended! The whole country was thrown into a state of turmoil but under the calm leadership of Mrs. Covington, the Federation was held together. A program was adopted to concentrate on beautification of Red Cross buildings, hospital grounds, and those around Army and Navy camps. Victory gardens were planted but supplanted rather than replaced flowers, which were taken and sent to ill and homesick servicemen. War bonds were bought by clubs and the Federation.

During this period of war hysteria some clubs withdrew from the parent group but others were added and all decided that, first, each should fit itself into lines of helpful relationship in the war effort of its community; and , second, that despite diversities normal garden club objectives should not break down and the two-year nature study plan should be carried out.

A convention was held at Hollywood the first year of Mrs. Covington’s administration but, due to drastic restrictions on use of gasoline, it was decided to omit the annual event in 1943. Decision also was reached that all officers of the Federation automatically hold over and all members of the board continue to meet and function as usual, with the district directors and committee chairmen to carry on work in their several capacities.

The 1944 convention, held in Tampa, was tantamount to “old home week”. Trains and buses were used and garden clubbers pooled their gasoline for automobile transportation with a splendid attendance resulting. New committees were formed to cover many phases of work, including the planting of trees as War Memorials. A new district was formed, bringing the total to seven.

Mrs. Covington had the idea the Federation could make a contribution to conservation by sponsoring a conservation camp for future women leaders. Through the assistance of the Florida Park and Forestry Service the first Nature Study Camp, named in her honor, was held at Camp O’Leno in June, 1945, with five girls in attendance.

